

# Application Instructions

Partnerships for National Housing Strategy Longitudinal Outcomes Research

NOTE: Co-directors and co-applicants who have been directed here for the CV and Biographical Sketch Instructions, click **here**.



INNOVATION & RESEARCH



Photos taken prior to COVID-19 physical distancing safety measures





## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

- 3 Important links
- **3** Am I eligible to apply?
- 3 Accommodations and accessibility
- 4 Collection and use of personal information
- 4 Self-identification information
- 4 Application deadline
- 4 Using the Convergence Portal to prepare your application
- **5** Participant eligibility (to be completed by project director)
- **5** Completing the application
- **13** Submitting the application
- **14** Submitting an application as the research administrator
- 14 Contact information
- 14 CV and Biographical Sketch Instructions

## NOTE

These instructions are intended to be used in conjunction with the <u>Partnerships for National Housing Strategy</u> <u>Longitudinal Outcomes Research description</u><sup>1</sup>, which includes the criteria that will be assessed by reviewers.

Your application must be received by 8:00 p.m. (eastern) on the deadline date (i.e., November 22, 2022).

Grant funds may be administered only by an <u>eligible</u> <u>postsecondary institution</u><sup>2</sup>. Refer to the funding opportunity description for details and contact <u>institutional.eligibility@sshrc-crsh.gc.ca</u> for questions about the process for <u>obtaining institutional eligibility</u><sup>3</sup>, which is distinct from the grant application.

If you are a project director from an <u>eligible institution</u><sup>2</sup>, select the name of the administering organization in the Affiliations step when creating an application. The research administrator at your institution is responsible for submitting your application. Refer to "<u>Submitting an application as the research administrator</u>" below for more details. As your institution may have earlier internal deadlines, check with your research administrator regarding deadlines. All team members, including project directors, co-directors and co-applicants, should inform their institution's research administrator or representative of their involvement in an application.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/en/professionals/project-funding-and-mortgage-financing/funding-programs/all-funding-programs/ longitudinal-outcomes-research

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/about-au\_sujet/policies-politiques/statements-enonces/list\_eligible\_institutions-liste\_etablissementsadmissibles-eng.aspx

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/about-au\_sujet/policies-politiques/statements-enonces/institutional\_eligibility-admissibilite\_ etablissements-eng.aspx

## **IMPORTANT LINKS**

- Partnership Grants for National Housing Strategy Longitudinal Outcomes Research description<sup>4</sup>, including information on co-director, co-applicant and collaborator eligibility
- Guide to Addressing Equity, Diversity and Inclusion Considerations in Partnership Grant Applications<sup>5</sup>
- Salary Research Allowances policy<sup>6</sup>
- Application deadline<sup>7</sup>
- Institutional Eligibility—Guidelines and Requirements<sup>8</sup>
- <u>Regulations Governing Grant Applications<sup>9</sup></u>
- Guidelines for Cash and In-Kind Contributions<sup>10</sup>
- Guidelines for Effective Knowledge Mobilization<sup>11</sup>
- Guidelines for Effective Research Training<sup>12</sup>
- Guidelines for the Merit Review of Indigenous Research<sup>13</sup>
- <u>Definitions of terms</u><sup>14</sup> used in the grant application process, including <u>partner organization</u><sup>15</sup> and <u>formal partnership</u><sup>16</sup>
- <u>Tri-Agency Framework: Responsible Conduct</u> of Research<sup>17</sup>
- Research Data Archiving Policy<sup>18</sup>
- Research Data Management Policy<sup>19</sup>
- Tri-Agency Open Access Policy on Publications<sup>20</sup>
- Tri-Agency Guide on Financial Administration<sup>21</sup>

## AM I ELIGIBLE TO APPLY?

Consult the Eligibility section of the funding opportunity description to ensure that you can participate in this grant program as a project director, co-director, co-applicant or collaborator.

## ACCOMMODATIONS AND ACCESSIBILITY

If you need help completing online application forms due to circumstances arising from a <u>disability</u><sup>22</sup>, contact your institution (scholarship liaison officer, research grant office or other applicant support office) as early in the application process as possible to investigate available supports. If your institution cannot provide help, or needs SSHRC to collaborate on a solution, contact <u>accommodations-adaptation@sshrc-crsh.gc.ca</u>. You can also contact SSHRC if you have questions or are seeking specific adaptation arrangements. You do not need to share your medical or sensitive personal information, and, to protect your privacy, should avoid doing so.

<sup>6</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/policies-politiques/g\_stipends-s\_indemnite-eng.aspx

- <sup>9</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/policies-politiques/grant\_regulations-reglements\_subventionaires-eng.aspx
- <sup>10</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/policies-politiques/cash\_inkind-especes\_en\_nature-eng.aspx
- <sup>11</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/policies-politiques/knowledge\_mobilisation-mobilisation\_des\_connaissances-eng.aspx
- <sup>12</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/policies-politiques/effective\_research\_training-formation\_en\_recherche\_efficace-eng.aspx
- <sup>13</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/merit\_review-evaluation\_du\_merite/guidelines\_research-lignes\_directrices\_ recherche-eng.aspx
- <sup>14</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/programs-programmes/definitions-eng.aspx
- <sup>15</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/programs-programmes/definitions-eng.aspx#a13
- <sup>16</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/programs-programmes/definitions-eng.aspx#a10
- <sup>17</sup> http://www.rcr.ethics.gc.ca/eng/framework-cadre.html
- <sup>18</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/about-au\_sujet/policies-politiques/statements-enonces/edata-donnees\_electroniques-eng.aspx
- <sup>19</sup> https://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/063.nsf/eng/h\_547652FB.html
- <sup>20</sup> https://science.gc.ca/eic/site/063.nsf/eng/h\_F6765465.html
- <sup>21</sup> https://www.nserc-crsng.gc.ca/InterAgency-Interorganismes/TAFA-AFTO/guide-guide\_eng.asp
- <sup>22</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/programs-programmes/definitions-eng.aspx#a31

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/en/professionals/project-funding-and-mortgage-financing/funding-programs/all-funding-programs/ longitudinal-outcomes-research

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/apply-demande/guides/partnership\_edi\_guide-partenariats\_guide\_edi-eng.aspx

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/deadlines-limites-eng.aspx

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/about-au\_sujet/policies-politiques/statements-enonces/institutional\_eligibility-admissibilite\_ etablissements-eng.aspx

Frequently requested accommodations include, but are not limited to:

- one-on-one phone or video appointments to clarify funding program information or the application process, or receive technical support;
- alternative formats of online materials to enable access using assistive technology; and
- submission of the application (in full or part) through alternate means or format (e.g., hard copy, voice recording, or data entry by SSHRC staff on the applicant's behalf).

## COLLECTION AND USE OF PERSONAL INFORMATION

The information you provide in your application is collected under the authority of the <u>Social Sciences and Humanities</u> <u>Research Council Act</u><sup>23</sup> and stored in a series of SSHRC data banks described in <u>Information about programs and</u> <u>information holdings</u><sup>24</sup>. Details on the use and disclosure of this information are described on the <u>Collection, Use</u> <u>and Disclosure of Personal Information</u><sup>25</sup> SSHRC page, in the Convergence Portal, and below. The information is used in accordance with the <u>Access to Information Act</u><sup>26</sup> and the <u>Privacy Act</u><sup>27</sup>.

# SELF-IDENTIFICATION INFORMATION

You are required to complete the self-identification form in order to apply for SSHRC funding; however, you may select "Prefer not to answer" for any or all questions. SSHRC appreciates your participation, which supports the granting agencies in monitoring the equity of their programs and strengthening equity, diversity and inclusion (EDI) in the research enterprise.

The self-identification information is collected as part of your user profile when you register in the <u>Convergence</u> <u>Portal<sup>28</sup></u>. It is not part of your application and is neither accessible to, nor shared with, external reviewers and/or selection committee members.

## **APPLICATION DEADLINE**

Your completed application must be received at SSHRC by **8:00 p.m. (eastern) on November 22, 2022**. The application will not be accessible to edit once it is submitted.

## USING THE CONVERGENCE PORTAL TO PREPARE YOUR APPLICATION

You must complete the application using the <u>Convergence</u> <u>Portal</u><sup>28</sup>. The Convergence Portal is only supported on the latest versions of Google Chrome, Microsoft Edge, Apple Safari and Mozilla Firefox. The portal may appear to function in other browsers, but can malfunction: for example, the information entered may not be properly captured in the system, without your being aware. **Use of an unsupported browser is strongly discouraged.** 

- Sign in to the <u>Convergence Portal</u><sup>28</sup>. **If you currently** have an account on the <u>Research Portal</u><sup>29</sup>, please use your existing credentials.
- Select Funding Opportunities.
- Select CMHC-SSHRC National Housing Strategy Longitudinal Outcomes Research.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>23</sup> http://lois-laws.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/S-12/page-1.html#docCont

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>24</sup> https://www.canada.ca/en/treasury-board-secretariat/services/access-information-privacy/access-information/information-about-programs-information-holdings.html

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>25</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/policies-politiques/g\_personal\_info-s\_info\_personnelles-eng.aspx?pedisable=false

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>26</sup> https://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/a-1/

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>27</sup> https://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/p-21/

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>28</sup> https://www.convergence.gc.ca/en/SignIn

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>29</sup> https://portal-portail.nserc-crsng.gc.ca/

## PARTICIPANT ELIGIBILITY (TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT DIRECTOR)

**Step 1—Project Director Eligibility:** Read the <u>eligibility</u> <u>section of the funding opportunity description</u><sup>30</sup> and answer the question confirming the eligibility of your proposal.

**Step 2—Affiliations:** List all your current affiliations and identify your primary affiliation. Select the organization that will administer the grant. If the name of the organization with which you are applying is not in the list in this step, contact partnerships@sshrc-crsh.gc.ca.

**Step 3—Equity, diversity and inclusion (EDI):** Complete the self-identification form, as required in order to apply for SSHRC funding; however, you may select "Prefer not to answer" for any or all questions (see <u>self-identification</u> section above for more information).

**Step 4—Fields of research:** List your <u>fields of research<sup>31</sup></u> and indicate one as a primary area of research.

**Step 5—Keywords:** Provide a minimum of five keywords that best describe, overall, your areas of research.

**Terms and conditions:** Accept the terms and conditions to begin the application process.

**Begin application:** Complete all sections, including uploading your CV (up to six pages, PDF) based on the <u>CV and Biographical Sketch Instructions</u>.

## COMPLETING THE APPLICATION

**Before writing your proposal, consult the evaluation criteria in the <u>funding opportunity description</u><sup>30</sup>. The headings below match the application sections in the Convergence Portal. Follow the instructions provided in this document, along with the instructions provided in the <u>Convergence Portal</u><sup>32</sup>, to complete the application.**  The project director is responsible for completing all sections of the application and submitting it once complete. While co-directors and co-applicants must complete their own profiles, including uploading their CV documents, the project director must verify that this has been done before submitting. The project director **must** remove any co-applicants or co-directors who have *not* completed their profiles or uploaded their CV documents in order to be able to Finalize and Submit the application.

The project director is responsible for verifying the page lengths and proper formatting of any uploaded attachments. If an application contains one or more attachments that do not comply with the page limits or formatting standard, it may be withdrawn from the competition or pages may be removed from the application.

**Note:** While co-directors and co-applicants can see the application content while in the Convergence Portal, they are not able to edit the content or make any other changes to the application.

## **Application details - Required**

**Application title:** Provide a short and descriptive title. It may be used for publication purposes. Limit the use of abbreviated forms (e.g., DNA, NATO, etc.) and avoid company or trade names.

**Language of the application:** Indicate the official language in which the application will be submitted.

## Invitations

Invite the co-directors and co-applicants for this application. Those invited will receive an email, which will include the project director's name and email address, and the project title, as well as a link to the <u>Convergence Portal</u><sup>32</sup>. Once they have selected Accept Invitation and completed their own eligibility profile, the co-directors' and co-applicants' names will be displayed in the Participants section of your application.

<sup>31</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/nfrf-fnfr/CRDC\_Web\_EF.xlsx

<sup>32</sup> https://www.convergence.gc.ca/

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>30</sup> https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/en/professionals/project-funding-and-mortgage-financing/funding-programs/all-funding-programs/ longitudinal-outcomes-research

Co-directors are required to upload a CV (up to six pages, PDF), following the <u>CV and Biographical Sketch Instructions</u> below. While co-directors must upload the CV document, co-applicants, as outlined in the same instructions, may choose to upload the CV document or a brief, one-page biographical sketch.

Ensure that co-directors and co-applicants invited in this section are eligible for that role by consulting the <u>Eligibility</u> section of the funding opportunity description<sup>33</sup>

**Note:** Email addresses are not verified and bounce backs are not registered. We strongly recommend that you follow up directly with invited co-directors and co-applicants if an individual has not accepted your invitation in a timely manner. When accepting an invitation, individuals will be redirected to the <u>Convergence Portal</u><sup>34</sup> to log in (or create an account), to verify their eligibility, and to complete the participant content. If you currently have an account on the Research Portal, please use your existing credentials to log in.

### **Participants**

This section lists all co-directors and co-applicants who have successfully joined the application. If an individual has not accepted your invitation, follow up with them to confirm they have received it. If an invited co-director or co-applicant is listed as *Pending Eligibility*, they have accepted your invitation, but not yet completed their eligibility profile. Their status will show as Complete when the required information has been finalized.

#### Collaborators

List the collaborators who will contribute to the research or related activities, but who will not have access to grant funds. While collaborators will not be sent an invitation to join the application like co-directors and co-applicants, they must have confirmed to the project director their willingness to participate in the application as a collaborator prior to being listed in this section.

#### Do not list co-directors or co-applicants in this section.

Any individual who will make a significant contribution to the project is eligible to be a collaborator.

#### **Partner organizations - Required**

List the <u>partner organizations</u><sup>35</sup> that have agreed to participate in the <u>formal partnership</u><sup>36</sup>. Include the contact information of each partner organization contact person.

Upload letters of support from each partner organization and include cash and in-kind contributions in the <u>Supporting documents</u> section as outlined below.

#### **Fields of research - Required**

List the fields of research that best describe this specific application according to the 2019 version of the Canadian Research and Development Classification (CRDC)<sup>37</sup>. You must provide one primary field of research, and you may list up to a maximum of five fields of research.

#### **Keywords - Required**

List between one and ten keyword entries that best describe **this specific application**. As your application must align with one of the 4 themes that are the focus of this initiative, one of these keyword entries **must** be one of the four themes that your application is most related to (i.e., Health, including mental wellbeing and physical health; Social outcomes of housing investments on populations in housing precarity; Economic outcomes related to employment and income; Better built environments, and the includes on climate change and energy poverty impacts ).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>33</sup> https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/en/professionals/project-funding-and-mortgage-financing/funding-programs/all-funding-programs/ longitudinal-outcomes-research

<sup>34</sup> https://www.convergence.gc.ca/

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>35</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/programs-programmes/definitions-eng.aspx#a13

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>36</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/programs-programmes/definitions-eng.aspx#a10

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>37</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/nfrf-fnfr/CRDC\_Web\_EF.xlsx

## **Summary of proposal - Required**

Provide a clear summary of your proposal, indicating:

- the overall goal and objectives of the proposed partnership;
- the theme of the proposal, chosen from the four indicated in the <u>funding opportunity description</u><sup>38</sup> (i.e., Health, including mental wellbeing and physical health; Social outcomes of housing investments on populations in housing precarity; Economic outcomes related to employment and income; Better built environments, and the includes on climate change and energy poverty impacts)
- the challenges or issues to be addressed and expected significance of the work; and
- the breadth of the partnership, and the meaningful engagement of the partner organizations involved, including the co-construction of knowledge with community-based organizations.

## **Proposed budget - Required**

Enter the yearly amounts requested. Ensure that your proposed budget does not exceed the maximum amount that can be requested per year or the maximum number of years that may be requested: up to \$410,000 for the first year and up to \$1.1 million annually for the following years, for up to 5 years, up to a total of \$4.8 millions.

Additional budget details are required in the <u>Supporting</u> documents section (i.e., "Funds requested from SSHRC" and "Budget justification" attachments). Please ensure that the total amounts requested from CMHC correspond with those submitted in the "Funds requested from SSHRC" detailed budget table in the <u>Supporting documents</u> section.

#### Certifications, licenses and permits

Complete this section by answering the questions as they relate to the proposed research project.

State whether or not your proposal involves human beings as research subjects. If it does, select "Yes" and consult the *Tri-Council Policy Statement: Ethical Conduct for Research Involving Humans—TCPS 2 (2018)*<sup>39</sup> and submit your proposal to your organization's research ethics board.

The Impact Assessment form<sup>40</sup> (Appendix A) must be completed and submitted with grant applications **only** if at least one of the following situations applies to your research or research-related activities, as per the Impact Assessment Act<sup>41</sup>, 2019 (IAA):

- A. any phase of the proposed research takes place on federal lands, other than lands under the administration and control of the Commissioner of Yukon, the Northwest Territories or Nunavut, as interpreted in section 2 of the IAA\*;
- **B.** any phase of the proposed research takes place in a country other than Canada<sup>\*</sup>;
- **C.** the grant funds permit a designated project (listed in the <u>Physical Activities Regulations</u><sup>42</sup>) to be carried out in whole or in part; or
- D. any phase of the proposed research depends on a designated project (listed in the <u>Physical Activities</u> <u>Regulations</u><sup>42</sup>) being led or carried out by an organization other than SSHRC.
- \* Items A and B above apply **only** to designated projects / physical activities listed in the <u>Physical Activities Regulations</u><sup>42</sup> (e.g., projects that involve physical work / alterations to the land or environment).

If none of the above situations apply to your proposed research activities, you do not need to complete or submit the Impact Assessment Form in the <u>Supporting</u> <u>documents</u> section.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>38</sup> https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/en/professionals/project-funding-and-mortgage-financing/funding-programs/all-funding-programs/ longitudinal-outcomes-research

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>39</sup> https://ethics.gc.ca/eng/policy-politique\_tcps2-eptc2\_2018.html

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>40</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/forms-formulaires/pdf/El\_Appendix\_A-IA\_Annexe\_A-eng.pdf

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>41</sup> https://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/I-2.75/

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>42</sup> https://laws.justice.gc.ca/eng/regulations/SOR-2019-285/index.html

## **Reviewer exclusions**

List potential reviewers who, in your opinion, would be unlikely to provide an impartial review. While SSHRC cannot be bound by this information, it will be taken into consideration in the selection of reviewers. This information will be held in strictest confidence and will not be provided to members of the adjudication committee.

## **Supporting documents**

#### Instructions for attachments

#### Prepare the documents

Prepare your Supporting documents attachments following the requirements below.

- 1. Any acronyms and abbreviations must be explained.
- 2. Pages must be 8 ½" x 11" (216 mm x 279 mm).
- **3.** Text must be single-spaced, with no more than six lines of type per inch.
- **4.** All text must be in black, using 11 pt. Arial font; condensed fonts will not be accepted.
- 5. Margins must be set at a minimum of <sup>3</sup>/<sub>4</sub>" (1.87 cm).
- **6.** In multi-page attachments, pages must be numbered sequentially.
- **7.** The application identification number (i.e., 1010-2022-xxxxx) must appear at the top of each page of the attachment.
- **8.** The name of the document must appear at the top (e.g., Research Proposal).

#### **Convert the documents**

All attachments must be converted to Portable Document Format (PDF) before they can be attached to the application. The conversion process varies with the operating system and word processing software you are using. If you have questions about converting your documents to PDF, contact your institution's technical support staff.

If you do not have a PDF conversion program, you may download a free version of <u>PrimoPDF</u><sup>43</sup>. Macintosh users have a PDF conversion option in the Macintosh system "print" function.

#### Research proposal (maximum 15 pages total) - Required

The following sections must be addressed in one document and uploaded following the instructions for attachments above. The page limits indicated for each section are suggestions, but the maximum **limit of 15 pages is firm.** The order of the sections must be followed, and the use of headings is highly encouraged. Use language that can be understood by a multidisciplinary review panel.

#### Goal and project description (8 pages)

Provide the following information in your description:

- Clearly justify your proposal in relation to the stated goal and objectives in the funding opportunity description, and outline the overall goal and specific objectives that the partnership will address during the lifespan of the grant. Demonstrate the relevance and significance of these objectives for all the participating partner organizations from the not-forprofit, public and private sector, including a description of the co-construction of knowledge with communitybased organizations.
- Justify the relevancy of the proposal to address the 4 themes of this initiative (i.e., Health, including mental wellbeing and physical health; Social outcomes of housing investments on populations in housing precarity; Economic outcomes related to employment and income; Better built environments, and the includes on climate change and energy poverty impacts).
- Describe the proposed project's originality, significance and expected contribution to knowledge in the social sciences and humanities, health and life sciences, and natural sciences and engineering.
- Demonstrate the appropriateness of the theoretical and methodological approaches (including the co-creation of knowledge) that will be chosen to meet the stated objectives. Include a literature review. SSHRC encourages project directors to discuss, if applicable, how research data arising from the project will be managed, including collection, preservation and sharing.
- Include Gender-Based Analysis + (GBA+) considerations in the research design (refer to the <u>GBA+ section of the</u> <u>funding opportunity description</u><sup>44</sup>).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>43</sup> https://www.primopdf.com/

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>44</sup> https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/en/professionals/project-funding-and-mortgage-financing/funding-programs/all-funding-programs/ longitudinal-outcomes-research

- Outline the potential benefits and expected outcomes of the proposed partnership, including the potential for the project results to have influence and impact for partner organizations from the not-for-profit, public and private sector.
- Provide a timeline for the project with key milestones for meeting the objectives, including progress indicators.

#### Training and mentoring (1 page)

It is expected that students, <u>emerging scholars</u><sup>45</sup> (e.g., postdoctoral researchers and other scholars in similar situations) and/or other highly qualified personnel (e.g., practitioners, subject matter experts, Indigenous Elders) will meaningfully participate in the proposed initiatives. In this section, clearly describe the specific roles and responsibilities of students, emerging scholars and/or other highly qualified personnel, indicating the work they will be undertaking. Consult the *Guidelines for Effective Research Training*<sup>46</sup> in preparing this section of the application. These guidelines will also be provided to reviewers.

Include:

- the nature and extent of training, mentoring and employability activities;
- the capacity of the project director and team members to provide the proposed training, mentoring and employability activities;
- the anticipated number of students, emerging scholars and/or other highly qualified personnel (where applicable, indicate the level of study—i.e., undergraduate, master's or doctoral) to be trained and mentored;
- GBA+ considerations in the recruitment, training and mentoring plan for students, emerging scholars and other highly qualified personnel (refer to the <u>GBA+</u> section of the funding opportunity description<sup>47</sup>).
- any career development opportunities, as well as the nature and level of specialized skills that the students, emerging scholars and/or other highly qualified personnel will develop as a result of their participation.

#### Knowledge mobilization plan (2 pages)

Include a plan to increase knowledge uptake by target audiences, and anticipated outputs, outcomes and/or impacts of social sciences and humanities, health and life sciences, and natural sciences and engineering knowledge among various appropriate audiences or participants (academic and/or non-academic), including:

- methodologies and approaches to engage appropriate target audiences or participants, including, as applicable, diverse groups of researchers, policy-makers, business leaders, community groups, educators, media, international audiences, practitioners, decision-makers and the general public;
- details about how GBA+ considerations will be addressed in the design of knowledge mobilization activities, as applicable (refer to the GBA+ section of the funding opportunity description).;
- timeframes or a schedule for the intended knowledge mobilization activities; and
- justifications for how the above points fit within the project's particular knowledge mobilization objectives.

**Note:** SSHRC and CMHC encourage its funding recipients to disseminate research knowledge in both official languages, whenever feasible and/ or appropriate.

#### Open access and data management

Grant holders must follow the <u>Tri-Agency Open Access</u> <u>Policy on Publications</u><sup>48</sup>. To the extent possible, and in keeping with this policy and SSHRC's endorsement of open access forms of knowledge dissemination, grant holders should make their research results openly available through, for example, open access publications, websites, publicly accessible databases and/or institutional repositories. To learn more, consult the Open Access overview<sup>49</sup>.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>45</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/programs-programmes/definitions-eng.aspx#a12

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>46</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/policies-politiques/effective\_research\_training-formation\_en\_recherche\_efficace-eng.aspx
<sup>47</sup> https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/en/professionals/project-funding-and-mortgage-financing/funding-programs/all-funding-programs/ longitudinal-outcomes-research

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>48</sup> http://www.science.gc.ca/default.asp?lang=En&n=F6765465-1

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>49</sup> http://www.science.gc.ca/eic/site/063.nsf/eng/h\_75F21A63.html?OpenDocument

# Description of formal partnership (2 pages)

Define and fully describe the partnership, so committee members can clearly understand that your proposal is a genuine <u>formal partnership<sup>50</sup></u>. In this attachment, explain:

- why a partnership approach is appropriate for the proposed activities, and demonstrate, specifically, how such a partnership adds value beyond what could be achieved through other approaches;
- how the partner organizations will participate in the intellectual leadership of the partnership, and how the partnership will involve the co-construction of knowledge with community-based organizations;
- the extent to which the partner organizations will participate in the partnership's GBA+ plans, if applicable (refer to the <u>GBA+ section of the</u> <u>funding opportunity description<sup>51</sup></u>).;
- the anticipated challenges in building the partnership, and how these will be addressed;
- how partner organizations will benefit from participating in the partnership; and
- how your application integrates the expertise of all partner organizations in the conduct of the activities.

#### Governance (1 page)

Define and fully describe your proposed partnership governance structure. You are strongly encouraged to include a diagram to illustrate the governance structure. In this section:

 explain the choice of management and governance arrangements, as well as of leadership, in the design and conduct of the research, research training, and/ or research-related activities. If your proposed partnership uses a co-director governance approach in which a co-director (or co-directors) shares intellectual leadership with the project director, outline and justify the approach in relation to the proposed research and related activities. The project director and administering organization are accountable for coordinating the grant's overall financial and administrative aspects;

- describe the nature of the co-directors', co-applicants', collaborators' and partner organizations' participation in the partnership's governance structure;
- describe the GBA+ plan for promoting a diverse team, inclusive working environment, and equitable opportunities within the partnership (refer to the <u>GBA+ section of the</u> <u>funding opportunity description</u><sup>51</sup>).
- describe the involvement of key partner organizations in the decision-making process, and explain the conditions, if any, under which they are participating;
- describe the involvement of the administering organization in supporting the partnership (e.g., infrastructure, cash and/or in-kind support, services, training);
- identify how issues will be resolved; and
- explain accountability and decision-making authority.

#### Description of team (1 page)

Explain the different types of expertise needed to ensure the partnership's success. Describe the roles, responsibilities and contributions of the project director, co-directors, and key co-applicants and/or collaborators, as well as other key participants. Clearly indicate, where appropriate, whether they are from an academic or a non-academic sector (e.g., not-for-profit organization, public or private sector organization), and how the activities and expertise of each member will support and enhance the proposed partnership.

#### Note about privacy and confidentiality:

Project directors must protect the privacy and confidentiality of all team members and trainees. How an individual self-identifies is considered personal and confidential information. If a team member's self-identification (e.g., gender, Indigenous identity, disability or racial background) is relevant to the research project, you may include that selfidentity information in this section only with their consent. Otherwise, self-identification information about any team member should not appear in the application.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>50</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/programs-programmes/definitions-eng.aspx#a10

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>51</sup> https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/en/professionals/project-funding-and-mortgage-financing/funding-programs/all-funding-programs/ longitudinal-outcomes-research

#### List of references or bibliography (maximum 10 pages) - Required

List all references cited or works referred to in your proposal. SSHRC recognizes and allows the use of different referencing styles.

If you have included references by the project director, co-director(s), co-applicant(s), or collaborator(s), indicate these in **bold** type.

#### Funds requested from SSHRC - Required

Grants offered under this initiative are valued at up to \$410,000 for the first year and up to \$1.1 million annually for each of the following years, up to five years.

For each budget year, estimate the costs you are asking CMHC to fund in the **template provided for this section** (upload as a PDF). Ensure that you fill in years one through five only, and that the totals match the figures entered into the Proposed Budget section of the Convergence application form. Consult the Specific rules for the use of grant funds section of the funding opportunity description. All budget costs must conform to the rates and regulations of the project director's institution and take into account the *Tri-Agency Guide on Financial Administration principles governing the appropriate use of funds*<sup>52</sup>.

All costs must be justified in terms of the needs of the project, including costs for organizing and integrating team activities and for communicating results to audiences, stakeholders and the public. The budget will be adjudicated according to the appropriateness of the requested budget, and to the justification of other planned resources (e.g., time, human and financial), including <u>cash and in-kind</u> support<sup>53</sup> already or to be secured from partner organizations.

SSHRC provides the following guidelines to committee members regarding the adjudication of the budget subcriteria of the overall Feasibility score:

- Committees may consider failing a project on the Feasibility criterion if they determine that 30% or more of the overall budget request is insufficiently justified and/or not appropriate to the proposed objectives or outcomes of the project.
- Committees will use the principle of minimum essential funding to guide their budget discussions.

 Committees may recommend minor budget reductions when they determine the request is inadequately justified and/or not appropriate as described above, and where they judge that savings could be achieved without jeopardizing the project objectives.

Enter amounts rounded to the nearest dollar.

#### **Personnel costs**

For each of the categories below, enter the number of students and non-students you plan to hire, whether as salaried employees or as recipients of stipends.

## Student and non-student salaries and benefits

For each applicable category, enter the number of students and non-students to be hired. Specify the total amount to be paid. When students are paid by wage, the amounts should follow the institution's collective agreement or policy.

#### **Student stipends**

You may request stipends for graduate students and postdoctoral researchers. Stipends must be justified in terms of the research, research training and/or researchrelated objectives. The work performed by stipend recipients should be an integral part of the project. Stipend rates are set by the institution concerned.

#### Other-Salary research allowances

Salary research allowances<sup>54</sup> are an eligible expense. These stipends are paid to a Canadian not-for-profit organization to cover up to 50% of the annual salary of an employee who is being temporarily replaced because they will be devoting their time as a project director, a co-director or a co-investigator on a SSHRC-funded research project. The request for a salary research allowance must be justified in the proposal.

Salary research allowances can be used only by not-for-profit organizations that have project directors, co-directors or co-applicants listed on the grant team. Postsecondary institutions and governmental organizations are not eligible for salary research allowances.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>52</sup> https://www.nserc-crsng.gc.ca/InterAgency-Interorganismes/TAFA-AFTO/guide-guide\_eng.asp#10

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>53</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/policies-politiques/cash\_inkind-especes\_en\_nature-eng.aspx

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>54</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/policies-politiques/g\_stipends-s\_indemnite-eng.aspx

#### **Travel and subsistence costs**

Enter, by budget year, the total amounts requested for travel abroad and within Canada for both the research team and student personnel. Project directors must obtain the lowest possible travel fares.

Subsistence costs must be based on rates approved by the institution or organization that will administer the funds.

#### **Other expenses**

#### **Professional or technical services**

Consulting fees for professional and technical services are eligible expenditures only if the budget justification demonstrates that expert advice is needed.

#### **Supplies**

You may include other supply items (e.g., software, stationery, postage and telephone calls) only if they directly relate to the research and are not provided by the administering organization to their research personnel or by the employer.

## Non-disposable equipment-computer hardware

Purchase or rental of computers and associated hardware is allowable only if these are not provided by the administering organization to their research personnel or by the employer.

#### Other non-disposable equipment

Purchase or rental of equipment (e.g., audio or video equipment) is allowable only if these are not provided by the administering organization to their research personnel or by the employer.

#### Other expenses (specify)

Specify other research and/or related expenses not already included.

#### Budget justification (maximum 2 pages) - Required

Using the categories listed on the <u>Funds requested from</u> <u>SSHRC</u> page, explain how you will use the funds in each budget category to achieve the project objectives. For example, under the student and non-student salaries and benefits categories, explain why these people need to be hired to meet the project's objectives. Project directors are reminded of SSHRC's mandate to provide training opportunities for students, <u>emerging</u> <u>scholars</u><sup>55</sup> and other highly qualified personnel, as applicable. Justify any funds that appear in the category "Other."

Ensure that your budget requests match the level of funding that is essential to complete the proposed activities. The adjudication committee may deem your application less competitive if it finds that you are requesting non-essential funding.

In reviewing the funding you have requested, committee members take into account the quality of your overall financial planning, your justification of the proposed expenditures, and the institutional and partner organization funding that you have secured. It is also important to indicate how the budget requested from CMHC as well as the partners' contributions will complement each other and benefit the objectives of the partnership.

Budgets should demonstrate a commitment to GBA+ principles (refer to the <u>GBA+ section of the funding</u> <u>opportunity description<sup>56</sup></u>).

#### Funds from other sources - Required

Complete the **template provided for this section** (upload as a PDF). Ensure that you fill in years one through five only. List all contributors (e.g., administering organization, partner organizations, individuals, not-forprofit organizations and private sector organizations) that are providing <u>cash and/or in-kind contributions</u><sup>57</sup> for the proposal. Indicate whether these funds have been confirmed.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>55</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/programs-programmes/definitions-eng.aspx#a12

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>56</sup> https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/en/professionals/project-funding-and-mortgage-financing/funding-programs/all-funding-programs/ longitudinal-outcomes-research

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>57</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/policies-politiques/cash\_inkind-especes\_en\_nature-eng.aspx

Type in the source name and amount and identify the contribution type.

If you have received more than one contribution of the same type from a single funding source (i.e., cash or in-kind) and with the same confirmation status, you must combine these into one entry (e.g., two confirmed \$20,000 cash contributions from a university become one confirmed \$40,000 cash contribution). Enter amounts rounded off to the nearest dollar, in Canadian currency.

#### Letters of support from partner organizations (maximum 2 pages per partner) - Required

The project director must upload a letter of support from each confirmed partner organization. Letters of support must be written on official letterhead and must include the following information:

- the relevance and significance of the project objectives for the partner organization;
- the exact nature of the involvement of the partner organization in the project, including the intellectual leadership and governance of the partnership, where appropriate;
- precise details on the financial and/or in-kind contributions to be provided by the partner organization; and
- the expected outcomes that the partner organization wishes to achieve.

#### List of potential partner organizations (maximum 2 pages) - If applicable

Attach a list of the potential partner organizations you plan to engage during the lifetime of your grant. Include website links, if available. Additionally, indicate whether each partner listed has been invited to participate.

## IMPACT ASSESSMENT (APPENDIX A)

Please follow on-screen instructions in the application and attach the <u>Impact Assessment Form (Appendix A)</u><sup>58</sup> in the <u>Supporting documents</u> if directed to do so.

# SUBMITTING THE APPLICATION

Review your application to ensure that it is complete. Follow the prompts from the **Finalize Application** section to submit it.

After you accept the Terms and Conditions, the status of your submission will change to **Received by Administrator.** If you want to make any changes after this point, you must request that your research grants office (research administrator) return it to you. Once your research administrator has approved and submitted your application, the application status will be changed to **Received by Agency and no further changes can be made.** If the research administrator does not forward the application, it will expire.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>58</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/forms-formulaires/pdf/El\_Appendix\_A-IA\_Annexe\_A-eng.pdf

## SUBMITTING AN APPLICATION AS THE RESEARCH ADMINISTRATOR

When you receive an application submitted by a project director at your institution, you will be asked to approve the application and submit it.

By forwarding the application, the research administrator, on behalf of the institution, certifies that:

- the applicant/project director:
  - is affiliated with the institution; and
  - has the necessary time and facilities to carry out the activity;
- the postsecondary institution:
  - is willing to administer any grant received according to SSHRC policies;
  - agrees to take the necessary steps to ensure that machine-readable files or computer databases are preserved and accessible under conditions agreed to by the institution and the researcher;
  - will release funds to the successful candidate once all necessary certification requirements and conditions have been met;
  - will notify SSHRC of changes in the composition of the partnership; and
  - has verified that the budgetary estimates are in accordance with its rates and policies.

## **CONTACT INFORMATION**

If you have questions:

- regarding the Partnership Grants for National Housing Strategy Longitudinal Outcomes, contact partnerships@sshrc-crsh.gc.ca; or
- on matters related to the Convergence Portal, contact the Online Services Helpdesk by email at <u>websupport@convergence.gc.ca</u> or by phone at 613-995-4273.

## CV AND BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCH INSTRUCTIONS

## Introduction

These instructions outline the required sections of the CV and the biographical sketch. All project directors and co-directors must submit a CV (up to six pages). Co-applicants may choose between submitting the CV or a one-page biographical sketch (see instructions below).

Participant Role	<b>CV</b> (up to six pages)	Biographical Sketch (one page)
Project director	Mandatory	N/A
Co-director	Mandatory	N/A
Co-applicant	Mandatory – option of either full CV or Biographical sketch	

The CV or biographical sketch (when applicable) will need to be uploaded as a PDF to the Convergence Portal once complete. Please use the headings below as a template as you prepare the CV. <u>Biographical sketch instructions</u> can be found at the end of this document.

#### Name

Please provide your given name, initials, and family name at the top of your CV.

### **Current Position**

List your current place of employment or university affiliation in this section. Indicate your position (e.g., associate professor, director, community organizer, student, postdoctoral fellow or associate).

# Academic Background (as applicable)

You may list up to five degrees. List them in reversed chronological order, starting with the highest. For completed degrees, indicate the date the degree was awarded. For degrees in progress, enter your expected date of completion.

#### **Credentials**

List up to six awards, scholarships, fellowships, distinctions, licenses and professional designations you have received and think would be the most pertinent to the adjudication of your application. List them in reverse chronological order, based on the year awarded.

#### **Funded Research**

List up to eight grants or contracts you have received from SSHRC and/or other sources and include the following information (as applicable): funding organization; year awarded / completion status; your role (project director, co-applicant, etc.); applicant's name (if not you); project title; total amount awarded.

#### Research Contributions and Relevant Experience

The project director, co-directors as well as any co-applicants providing full CVs must provide a section presenting research contributions and relevant experience. They may address the sections below, as applicable, and choose to devote more space to certain sections depending on the nature of their past contributions and experience. Attachments should be presented in this order, as applicable:

- 1. Relevant research contributions over the last six years
- 2. Other research contributions
- 3. Most significant career research contributions
- 4. Career interruptions and special circumstances
- 5. Contributions to training
- 6. Relevant experience

# 1. Relevant research contributions over the last six years

Outline your research contributions within six years of the application deadline date. In the case of those candidates claiming career interruptions (see 4. below), you may include publications drawn from your most recent periods of research activity to an overall total of six years.

Provide details, as appropriate, about the contributions you listed, as follows.

- In the left margin, identify with an asterisk (\*) research contributions that resulted from previous SSHRC support.
- Specify your role in co-authored publications.
- For published contributions, provide complete bibliographic notices (including co-authors, title, publisher, journal, volume, date of publication and number of pages) as they appear in the original publication.
- For publications in languages other than French or English, provide a translation of the title and the name of the publication.
- For recent graduates, list theses.

Group your contributions by category in the following order, as applicable, listing your most recent contributions first.

#### **Refereed contributions**

Examples include books (where applicable, subdivide according to those that are single-authored, co-authored and edited works), monographs, book chapters, articles in scholarly refereed journals and conference proceedings.

Be aware that a "refereed work" involves its assessment: in its entirety—not merely an abstract or extract; before publication; and by independent (at arm's length from the author), anonymous, qualified experts.

#### Other refereed contributions

Examples include papers presented at scholarly meetings or conferences and articles in professional or trade journals.

#### **Non-refereed contributions**

Examples include book reviews, published reviews of work, research reports, policy papers and public lectures.

#### **Forthcoming contributions**

Indicate one of the following statuses: "submitted," "revised and submitted," "accepted" or "in press." Provide the name of the journal or book publisher and the number of pages. Contributions not yet submitted should not be listed.

#### **Creative outputs**

Examples of creative outputs may include exhibitions, performances, publications, presentations, and film, video and audio recordings. List your most recent and significant achievements grouped by category.

Creative outputs will be evaluated according to established disciplinary standards and creative and/or artistic merit.

If applicable, you may include a website link. SSHRC cannot guarantee that links will be accessed.

#### 2. Other research contributions

Describe any other contributions to research and the advancement of knowledge within the last six years, including your research contributions to non-academic audiences (e.g., public, policy-makers, private sector and not-for-profit organizations).

## 3. Most significant career research contributions

List and rank up to five of your most significant contributions over your entire career. The six-year rule does not apply to this section. Therefore, contributions listed here may differ from those listed in other sections of your CV. Please ensure that you explain briefly the significance of the contributions listed.

## 4. Career interruptions and special circumstances

**Career interruptions** occur when researchers are taken away from their research work for an extended period of time for health, administrative, family or other reasons, or reasons related to the COVID-19 pandemic. In these cases, as explained above in the <u>Relevant research contributions</u> <u>over the last six years</u><sup>59</sup> section, explain the interruption(s) and ask that an overall total of six years of research activity be considered by the adjudicating committee.

**Special circumstances** involve slowdowns in research productivity created by health (and/or disability-related), administrative, family, cultural or community responsibilities, socio-economic context, COVID-19 or other reasons (i.e., the researcher was not completely taken away from research work). Applicants from small institutions may indicate their teaching load in this section if the change in workload impacted their research output.

Indigenous applicants can use the "Special Circumstances" section of their application form to describe special circumstances that may have had an impact on their academic or career paths.

SSHRC asks its adjudication committees to consider career interruptions and special circumstances that may have affected candidates' record of research achievements. In doing so, adjudication committee members will be able to more accurately estimate the productivity of each researcher, independent of any career interruptions or special circumstances in the last six years. Previous productivity is one element that may predict the success of the proposed research project.

All information provided to SSHRC is subject to the <u>Privacy</u> <u>Act</u><sup>60</sup>. Applicants are reminded that the information included in this section of their application will be shared with both external assessors and adjudication committee members for consideration as part of their application. For more information, see <u>merit review</u><sup>61</sup>. All SSHRC merit reviewers are subject to the <u>Tri-Agency Conflict of Interest and</u> <u>Confidentiality Policy</u><sup>62</sup>, and are prohibited from sharing this information outside of the merit review process.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>59</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/instructions/index-eng.aspx?fid=pg-2\_instr#cont1

<sup>60</sup> http://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/P-21/index.html

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>61</sup> https://www.sshrc-crsh.gc.ca/funding-financement/merit\_review-evaluation\_du\_merite/index-eng.aspx

<sup>62</sup> http://www.science.gc.ca/eic/site/063.nsf/eng/h\_90108244.html

#### 5. Contributions to training

Provide the following information on students you have helped train within the last six years.

- Indicate your role in supervising or co-supervising ongoing and/or completed theses, listing these by the student's level of studies.
- Describe efforts you have made to involve students (e.g., doctoral, master's or undergraduate) in your research activities.
- Specify if opportunities for such contributions have been limited because your university does not have graduate degree programs in your field or discipline.

#### 6. Relevant experience

In the Relevant experience section, non-academic and academic project directors can describe their previous experience that is relevant to the topic and objectives they are investigating in the application, including their experience in engaging in and/or leading formal partnerships and collaborative research. Please justify how this experience will aid you in the proposed activity. Examples of relevant experience include: working within or with communities and/or organizations (e.g., not-for-profit, public and private sector organizations), non-academic career information, or voluntary work. Include:

- your experience in engaging in and/or leading formal partnerships and collaborative research;
- a brief description of the nature of the work you performed;
- an explanation of how this work has prepared you for your role in the project; and
- a description of the skills you developed (e.g., training, mentoring, analysis, networking).

### Biographical Sketch (optional for co-applicants only)

Co-applicants may choose to include a one page biographical sketch instead of the CV to help describe your research and professional experience that is relevant to the topic and objectives of the application.

You may structure the biographical sketch as you wish, generally following the proposed headings below as applicable. You may choose to devote more space to certain sections depending on the nature of your past contributions and experience (for example, co-applicants from non-academic sectors may choose to have a larger "Relevant experience" section). Note that the "Employment/ affiliations" section must be included in your biographical sketch.

#### Proposed sections to use, as applicable:

- Employment/affiliations (required): List your current, primary position / appointment, and other professional and academic work experience, including administrative appointments.
- **Education/training:** List your current and/or completed degree programs.
- Research funding: List your awarded research funding.
- Most significant contributions: List your research publications (refereed and non-refereed); research contributions to non-academic audiences (e.g., general public, policy- makers, private sector, not-for-profit organizations, etc.); creative outputs (e.g., exhibitions, performances, publications, presentations, film, video, audio recordings, etc.).
- **Relevant experience:** List and describe previous experience that is relevant to the topic and objectives being investigated in the application. For example, you may include experience in engaging in collaborative research as well as details about skills you developed. Examples of relevant experience may include: working within or with communities and/or organizations (e.g., not-for-profit, public and private sector organizations), non-academic career information, or voluntary work, etc.





cmhc-nhs.ca